




 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 3 

 

Discussion and approval of regular minutes for the May 24, 2021 meeting. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: City Secretary Ruby Beaven 



 
May 25, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Minutes  Page 1 of 4 

 
 

MINUTES 

 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION 

MAY 24, 2021 – 6:00 P.M. 

CITY AUDITORIUM IN THE RUHMAN C. FRANKLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

303 W. MAIN ST., KENEDY, TX. 78119 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:     MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Gary Richards, President     Don Staggs, Director 

Felipe Leal, Vice President 

Leslie Wynn, Treasurer 

Cindy Saenz, Secretary  

Lajuana Kasprzyk, Director  

Walter (Trey) Hill III, Investment Officer 

 

CITY PRESENT: 

City Manager William Linn 

City Secretary Ruby Beaven 

 

1. Call meeting to order and announce a quorum present. 

 

President Richards called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and announced a quorum was 

present. 

 

2. Public comments. 

 

No public comments were made.   

 

3. Presentation of check to San Antonio River Foundation for park bench in honor of 

former President Larry Kiesling. 

 

San Antonio River Foundation members were not present for presentation.  This item was 

skipped until members arrive. 

 

The Board returned to this item 6:12 p.m. San Antonio River Foundation members arrived 

and picture presentation was conducted. 

 

4. Elect new officers.  

 

President Richards stated no new officers to elect.  As seen in Item 6, discussion to possibly 

abolish the Treasury and Secretary officer positions.  This item was skipped with intention 

to return to discuss after Item 6 is addressed. 

 



 
May 25, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Minutes  Page 2 of 4 

The Board returned to this item and discussed electing a Treasurer. 

 

Motion: Vice President Leal made the motion to elect Leslie Wynn as Treasurer.  The 

motion was seconded by Secretary Saenz.  Motion passed unanimously.  

 

5. Discussion and approval of regular minutes for the April 2021 meeting. 

 

It was noted that Item four (4) of the minutes needed to be changed to state: 

Leslie Wynn nominated City Saenz as secretary. 

 

Motion: Director Kasprzyk made the motion to approve the April 2021 minutes with one 

amendment as noted.  The motion was seconded by Director Wynn.  Motion passed 

unanimously.  

 

6. Discussion and possible action to amend bylaws to abolish positions of treasury and 

secretary from Article IV Officers sections 4.01, 4.05, 4.06, and Article VII Financial 

Administration sections 7.02 and 7.06. 

 

Director Kasprzyk stated she was in favor of the Secretary Officer position and the position 

should stay with the Board and not with the City working in its capacity.  Director Hill 

stated the Bylaws should be updated to reflect the City oversees the Secretary and Financial 

Administration.  Vice President Leal agreed with Director Hill.  Secretary Saenz stated the 

Bylaws should be updated and to keep the City overseeing the Secretary and Financial 

Administration.  City Manager Linn recommended to keep the City overseeing the 

Secretary and Financial Administration from City staff. 

 

City Manager Linn stated he could put the wording together on the Bylaws to reflect the 

City Secretary and Financial Administration.  

 

President Richards stated Item six (6) is only about abolishing the positions not amending 

the Bylaws.   

 

Motion: Director Wynn made the motion to take no action.  Secretary Saenz seconded the 

motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Returned to Item 3. 

Returned to Item 4. 

 

7. Discussion and possible action to remove Larry Kiesling and Doris Pope from Texas 

Champion and Texpool accounts, as applicable. 

 

Motion: Director Kasprzyk made the motion to remove Larry Kiesling and Doris Pope 

from Texas Champion and Texpool accounts, as applicable.  Treasurer Wynn seconded the 

motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

8. Discussion and possible action to approve a resolution for board members to have 

signatory authority over bank accounts with Texas Champion Bank and Texpool.  

 

Discussion was held among the Board that the President, Vice President, and Secretary 

should have signatory authority for the Texas Champion bank accounts. 



 
May 25, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Minutes  Page 3 of 4 

 

Motion: Treasurer Wynn made the motion to add Vice President Felipe Leal to have 

signatory authority with Texas Champion Bank.  Director Hill seconded the motion.  

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

The board returned to this item to add Director Trey Hill the newly elected Investment 

Officer to have signatory authority with Texpool. 

 

Motion: Treasurer Wynn made the motion to Director Trey Hill, Investment Officer, to 

have signatory authority with Texpool.  Vice President Leal seconded the motion.  Motion 

passed unanimously. 

 

9. Discussion and possible action to approve Investment Officer(s).  

 

Motion: Treasurer Wynn made the motion to elect Director Kasprzyk as an Investment 

Officer.  No one seconded the motion.  Motion dies for lack of second. 

 

Motion: Vice President Leal made the motion to elect Director Hill as an Investment 

Officer.  Treasurer Wynn seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Returned to Item 8. 

 

10. Discussion and possible action for Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) training. 

 

City Secretary Beaven to schedule Public Funds Investment Act training for Director Hill 

and President Richards for the University of North Texas course taught by Patrick Shinkle. 

 

11. Discussion and possible action to transfer money from Texpool to Texas Champion 

Bank. 

 

Discussion was held among Board and City Manager Linn with regard to maintaining a 

positive balance, paying bills, bond, and money transfer. 

 

Motion: Treasurer Wynn made the motion to transfer $700,000 from Texpool to Texas 

Champion Bank.  Vice President Leal seconded the motion. 

In favor:  President Richards, Vice President Leal, Treasurer Wynn, Secretary 

Saenz, Director Hill 

Opposed: Director Kasprzyk 

Motion passed five to one.   

 

12. Discussion and possible action to approve the April 2021 Financial Report. 

 

City Manager Linn presented the April 2021 Financial Report.  Discussion was held among 

the Board with the City Manager. 

 

Motion: Treasurer Wynn made the motion to approve the April 2021 Financial Report.  

Vice President Leal seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

13. Discussion and possible action to approve bills to be paid for the month. 

 



 
May 25, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Minutes  Page 4 of 4 

The Board reviewed the open accounts payable invoices. 

 

Motion: Vice President Leal made the motion to approve bills to be paid for the month.  

Treasurer Wynn seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

14. Discussion and possible action to approve amended budget for the current fiscal 

year ending September 30, 2021. 

 

City Manager Linn presented the recommended amended budget for the Fiscal Year 

beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021. 

 

Director Kasprzyk made the motion to approve the amended budget for the current fiscal 

year ending September 30, 2021 as presented.  Treasurer Wynn seconded the motion.  

Motion passed unanimously.   

 

15. Discuss and update board on applications received for the mini grants for small 

businesses adversely affected by COVID 19 pandemic. 

 

City Manager stated the deadline for the grants is May 31, 2021.  At this time, there have 

been three application submissions: One Hotel; One Restaurant; One Bar. 

 

16. Discuss downtown improvement project.   

 

President Richards stated he wanted this item on the agenda to bring the topic to the 

forefront of the Boards attention to consider downtown improvement project(s).  President 

Richards asked the Board to think about ideas and opinions.  Discussion was held among 

the Board to include boundary lines, street parking, beautifying downtown, Blue Bonnet 

festival, down town buildings, vacant downtown buildings, old historic look, HOT funds, 

Horn Toads, grants and potential city match, park extension, and new apartment complex. 

 

Items to add to the next agenda: 

Discuss downtown improvement project. 

Discuss a standalone website. 

 

17. Adjourn. 

 

Treasurer Wynn made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:12 p.m.  Investment Officer 

Hill seconded the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

       ____________________________________

       Gary Richards, President 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Ruby Beaven, City Secretary 

 



 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 4 

 

Discussion and possible action to approve the May 2021 Financial Report. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Linn 



















 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 5 

 

Discussion and possible action to approve the expense for the Glenna May bench for Joe Gulley 

Park on behalf of the Parks & Recreation Board. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: Parks & Recreation Chair Suzanne Nunez 







 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 6 

 

Discussion and possible action to approve bills to be paid for the month. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Linn 



KENEDY 4B CORPORATION

REVISED  LISTING OF OPEN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE INVOICES

BOARD MEETING DATE:  JUNE 28, 2021

AMOUNT OF

INVOICE DATE INVOICE # VENDOR/PAYEE DESCRIPTION INVOICE

6/18/2021 203 CITY OF KENEDY BOOKKEEPING SERVICES - MAY 2021 1,000.00

204 CITY OF KENEDY REIMB. FOR COASTAL BEND PUBLISHING COVID GRANT 400.00

 SUBTOTAL 1,400.00

2/28/2021 PAY APP 1 CITY OF KENEDY REIMB. FOR MARSHALL COMPANY- BLDG C 5,529.00

3/31/2021 PAY APP 2 CITY OF KENEDY REIMB. FOR MARSHALL COMPANY- BLDG C 19,114.00

4/30/2021 PAY APP 3 CITY OF KENEDY REIMB. FOR MARSHALL COMPANY- BLDG C 101,745.00

5/31/2021 PAY APP 4 CITY OF KENEDY REIMB. FOR MARSHALL COMPANY- BLDG C 61,313.00

SUBTOTAL -BLDG C -- SPORTS COMPLEX 187,701.00

6/1/2021 35946 UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TX PFIA TRAINING - GARY RICHARDS 240.00

6/1/2021 35945 UNIVERSITY OF NORTH TX PFIA TRAINING - WALTER HILL, III 240.00

6/16/2021 37089 LASER CHECK PRINTING CRAMER MARKETING 132.64

5/28/2021 50318 UPBEAT SITE FURNISHINGS PARK BENCH IN  MEMORY OF GLENNA MAY 1,696.70

       PER PARK BOARD REQUEST (QUOTE ONLY)

TOTAL ALL UNPAID INVOICES 191,410.34











































 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 7 

 

Discussion and possible action to approve the amended City of Kenedy 4B Corporation Bylaws. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Linn 



REVISED 

 

 CORPORATE BYLAWS 

 OF THE  

 CITY OF KENEDY 4B CORPORATION 

 

 

These Bylaws govern the affairs of the City of Kenedy 4B Corporation (the Corporation), a public 

instrumentality and a non-profit corporation created under Section 4B of the Development Corporation Act of 

1979, as amended (the Act). 

 

 ARTICLE I 

 PURPOSE 

 

1.01 The purpose of the Corporation is to promote, assist, and enhance economic development activities 

and quality of life opportunities within the City of Kenedy that promote economic development as 

authorized by the Act.  The Corporation has no members and is a non-profit corporation. 

 

 

 ARTICLE II 

 REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

 

2.01 The registered office and agent for the Corporation shall be maintained in the City of Kenedy, Texas. 

 The Board of Directors shall initially maintain and use the Kenedy City Hall as its administrative 

office, but may move its administrative office or establish additional offices with the prior approval 

of the City Council of the City of Kenedy. 

 

 

 ARTICLE III 

 BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 Powers 

 

3.01 The Corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors which are authorized to exercise the 

powers authorized by the Act, subject to any limitations of these bylaws, including the following: 

 

a.  To purchase or acquire for the Corporation any property, rights, or privileges and to pay 

therefore either wholly or partly in money, stock, bonds, debentures, or other securities of the 

Corporation as may be lawful. 

 

b.  To create, make and issue notes, mortgages, bonds, deed of trust, trust agreements and 

negotiable or transferrable instruments and securities, secured by a mortgage or deed of trust 

on any real property of the Corporation or otherwise, and to do every other act or thing 

necessary to effect the same. 

 

c.  To sell or lease the real or personal property of the Corporation on the terms the Board 

sees fit and to execute deeds, leases and other conveyances of contracts as necessary for 

carrying out the purposes of this Corporation. 

 

  

Duties of Directors 



 

3.02 The Board is required to perform the following duties: 

 

a.  Program.  The Board shall research, develop, and prepare an Economic Development Plan 

(the Plan) in accordance with policies or directives established by the City Council of 

Kenedy. The Board shall review the Plan at least once a year and submit it to the City 

Council for its approval.  The Plan should include: 

 

1.  The short and long-term objectives of the Corporation and how they 

might be achieved, including specific details of proposed efforts and 

programs to achieve those goals; 

 

2.  Guidelines of how the Corporation proposes to use the tax funds 

received by the Corporation to achieve its objectives, including any 

limitations on the use of the funds; 

 

3.  Procedures on how decisions on the use of Corporate funds will be 

determined in pursuit of the Corporation’s objectives; and 

 

4.  Any other information the City Council requests in writing be included 

in the Plan. 

 

b.  Reports to City Council.  With each submission of the Economic Development Plan, and 

at any other times requested by the City Council, the Corporation shall submit a written 

Performance Report to the City council, detailing the activities and accomplishments of the 

Corporation since the prior Report. 

 

c.  Briefings.  The president or executive director shall appear before the City Council to 

brief the City Council on activities of the Corporation at least quarterly and at such other 

times as requested by the mayor or three or more members of the City Council. 

 

 Number and Qualifications 

 

3.03 The Board shall consist of seven (7) persons, who shall be appointed by and shall serve at the 

pleasure of the City Council of the City of Kenedy. 

 

3.04 At the time of appointments, each director shall be a resident of the City of Kenedy. 

 

3.05 Directors appointed to serve after the expiration of 2007 shall serve two (2) year terms or until 

successors are appointed.   

 

 Attendance 

 

3.06 Directors should attend all regular called or special called meetings of the Board.  Directors who are 

regularly absent from meetings of the Board may be removed from office by the City Council. 

  

Vacancies 

 

3.07 Vacancies in the Board will be filled by appointment by the City Council of the City of Kenedy. 

 

 



 Ex-Officio Members 

 

3.08 The City Council of the City of Kenedy and the City Manager shall serve as ex-officio member of the 

Board.  The City Council may also appoint other ex-officio members to the Board.  Ex-officio 

members shall be given notice of all meetings of the Board and may participate in discussions at 

Board meetings, but shall not be entitled to vote.  The Board may recommend individuals to the City 

Council to serve as ex-officio directors.  The ex-officio members shall serve at the please pleasure of 

the City Council and until their successors are appointed. 

 

 

 ARTICLE IV 

 OFFICERS 

 

 Officer Position 

 

4.01 The officer of the Corporation shall be a president, a vice-president, a secretary, and a treasurer, 

whom shall be members of the Board.  The Board may appoint other officers as it deems necessary.  

No officer shall be both president and secretary 

 

 Election and Terms of Office 

 

4.02 The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board.  Each officer shall hold office 

until a successor is duly elected and qualified.  An officer may be elected to succeed himself or 

herself in the same office one (1) time.  Vacancies in officer positions may be filled by the Board for 

their unexpired terms. 

 

 President 

 

4.03 The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation.  He shall preside at all Board 

meetings and generally supervise and control the business and affairs of the Corporation and perform 

any other duties prescribed from time to time by the Board.  He may execute deeds, mortgages, 

bonds, contracts or other instruments, as authorized by the Board.  The president shall appoint the 

members of all committees and all committee chairs. 

 

 Vice-President 

 

4.04 A vice-president shall be appointed by the Board.  The vice-president shall perform the duties 

assigned to him by the Board.  In the absence of the president, or if the president is unable or refuse 

to act, the vice-president shall perform the duties of president. 

 

 Secretary 

 

4.05 The Kenedy 4B secretary shall oversee and verify be the custodian of the Kenedy 4B corporate 

records as maintained in custody by the City of Kenedy City Secretary.  The City of Kenedy City 

Secretary secretary shall record and keep all votes and minutes of the meetings of the Board, to which 

the Kenedy 4B secretary shall review and approve prior to disseminating to the Board.  The City of 

Kenedy City Secretary upon approval of the meeting notice by the Kenedy 4B secretary shall give 

notice of all meetings of the Board and its committees. The Kenedy 4B secretary and shall perform 

such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or president. 

 

 



 Treasurer 

 

4.06 The Kenedy 4B treasurer shall ensure perform the usual duties of that office and other duties the 

president assigns.  He shall see that proper and accurate accounts are kept by the City of Kenedy Staff 

Accountant of regarding the financial condition of the Kenedy 4B corporation and that proper books 

are maintained for their orderly entry.  The Treasurer He or she will ensure insure that the financial 

policies adopted by the Board are duly followed and that an independent audit is made of the 

accounts of the Corporation at the end of each fiscal year.  The Treasurer, or their designated agent, 

He or she shall report the financial condition of the Corporation at each regular meeting of the Board 

and to the City Council as requested from time to time. 

 

 Executive Director 

 

4.07 The Board may employ an executive director to serve as the general manager and chief 

administrative officer of the Corporation.  The executive director shall be subject to the 

supervision of the Board and shall perform the duties specifically delegated to him by the Board.  

The executive director shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and receive compensation 

approved by the Board.  The executive director shall be responsible for policy and program 

implementation and the day to day operations of the corporation, including the hiring of 

employees, and the supervision and dismissal of those employees.   The executive director shall 

be a non-voting , ex-officio member of the Board and of any other committees created by the 

Board.  The executive director shall compile and submit to the Board regular reports and 

recommendations regarding the programs, policies and business affairs of the Corporation.  

 

 

ARTICLE V 

 BOARD COMMITTEES 

  

Committees Authorized 

 

5.01 With the approval of the Board, the president may appoint persons to serve on standing or ad hoc 

committees.  A committee may include persons who are not directors of the Corporation.  

Committees will operate under general rules adopted by the Board.  Committees may be charged with 

specific duties or authority, but shall not have the authority to: 

 

a.  Amend the articles of incorporation, amend, alter, or repeal the Bylaws, or adopt a plan of 

merger or consolidation with another corporation. 

 

b.  Authorize the sale, lease, exchange or mortgage of any of the property or assets of the 

Corporation or commit Corporation funds without the prior approval of the Board. 

 

c.  Authorize or revoke proceedings for the voluntary dissolution of the Corporation or adopt 

a plan for the distribution of the assets of the Corporation. 

 

d.  Approve any transaction to which the Corporation is a party, take any action outside the 

scope of authority delegated to it by the Board, take final action on a matter that requires the 

approval of the Board, take action on any other matters appropriate to the authority of the 

Board, or take any action that involves a potential conflict of interest as defined by these 

bylaws. 

 

 Committee Terms 



 

5.02 The members of each standing committee shall serve until successors are appointed by an incoming 

president, unless the Committee is terminated or a member is removed, resigns, or ceases to qualify 

as a member.  Vacancies on committees may be filled in the same manner as the original 

appointment. 

 

 Rules 

 

5.03 Each committee or subcommittee may adopt rules for its own operation consistent with the Bylaws or 

with rules adopted by the Board. 

 

 

 ARTICLE VI 

 MEETINGS 

  

Regular Meetings 

 

6.01 The Board shall hold at least four (4) regular quarterly meetings each year.  All regular quarterly 

meetings will be held in city-owned facilities.  Special meetings may be held on city-owned facilities 

or the meeting room at the Dairy Queen. 

 

Special Meetings 

 

6.02 Special meetings of the Board may be called by the mayor or at the request of the president or upon 

written request of at least three (3) directors.  Any notice of a special meeting shall contain a 

summary of the business or proposals to be brought before the special meting. 

 

 Notice 

 

6.03 Written or printed notice of each regular meeting of the Board shall be delivered to each director not 

less than three (3) days before the date of the meeting.  The notice shall state the place, date, and time 

of the meeting.  In the case of special meetings, notice may be issued to directors by mail, telephone, 

fax, or in person at least three (3) days before the date of the meeting and shall include who called the 

meeting and the purpose of the meeting. 

 

 Quorum 

 

6.04 Four (4) directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the 

Board. 

 

 Action of Board 

 

6.05 The vote of a majority of the directors present and voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present 

shall be sufficient to constitute the act of the Board. 

 

 Proxies 

 

6.06 A director may not vote by proxy. 

 

 Open Meetings 

 



6.07 All meeting and deliberations of the Board shall be called, convened, held and conducted in 

accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, as amended. 

 

  

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

 FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATION 

 

 Fiscal Year 

 

7.01 The fiscal year of the Corporation shall run concurrently with the fiscal year of the City of Kenedy. 

 

 Accounts to be kept with City 

 

7.02 The Corporation shall contract with the City of Kenedy for the administration of its accounts, 

expenditures, deposits, investment of funds and accounts, and other financial services for the 

Corporation.  The Board shall designate the accounts and depositories to be created and designated 

for such purposes, and the methods of withdrawal of funds therefrom for use by and for the purposes 

of the Corporation upon the signature of its treasurer, investment officer, or president and such other 

members as the Board shall designate. 

 

 Budget 

 

7.03 At least sixty (60) days prior to the commencement of each fiscal year of the Corporation, the Board 

shall adopt a proposed budget of expected revenues and proposed expenditures of the next ensuing 

fiscal year. The budget shall contain such classifications and shall be in such form as may be 

prescribed from time to time by the City Council of the City of Kenedy.  The Corporation's budget 

shall not be effective until the same has been approved by the City Council. 

 

 Audits 

 

7.04 The Corporation shall cause its books, records, accounts, and financial statements, and all other 

activities for the previous fiscal year to be audited at least once each fiscal year by an outside 

independent certified public accounting firm approved by the City Council of the City of Kenedy.  

Any such audit shall be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing procedures 

(GAAP) and shall include a written management letter with details suggested management controls 

and operating efficiencies.  The management letter shall include recommendations for improving cost 

reduction and safeguarding assets.  Each audit shall be prepared and submitted annually to the City 

Council of the City of Kenedy, Texas, for approval. 

 

 Limitations on Expenditures 

 

7.05 Before expending funds to undertake a project, the Corporation shall hold at least one public hearing 

on the proposed project. 

 

 Checks and Drafts 

 

7.06 All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness 

issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed or bear the facsimile of the president and 

treasurer, or such other person as designated by the Board. 



 

 Contracts 

 

7.07 The Board may by official action authorize any officer or agent of the Corporation to enter into a 

contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation.  This 

authority may be limited to a specific contract or instrument or it may extend to any number and type 

of possible contracts and instruments.  The Corporations shall follow and be bound by the same 

purchasing and contracting provisions of State law, including the provisions on competitive bidding, 

that are applicable to the City of Kenedy.  Any contract of the Corporation which will require an 

expenditure of funds in excess of $25,000.00 that the City Council has not previously approved as 

part of the Corporation's annual budget or in a city tax abatement agreement, must be approved by the 

City Council before any payment on the contract is made. 

 

 Gifts 

 

7.08 The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any gift or bequest.  Special funds shall include 

all funds from government contract, grants, and gifts designated by a donor for the special purposes.  

All other funds shall be general funds. 

 

 Potential Conflicts of Interest 

 

7.09 The Corporation shall not make a loan to a director, officer or employee of the Corporation or to an 

officer or employee of the City of Kenedy.  In transactions with the Corporation, directors shall 

follow and be bound by the requirements and limitations of Chapter 171 of the Local Government 

Code, as amended.  Any director may bring to the Board's attention any apparent or potential conflict 

of interest of any other director in any transaction or matter coming before the Board for a decision.  

The Board shall make a determination on whether the director has a conflict of interest before voting 

on the transaction or matter.  The director alleged to have the conflict of interest shall not vote on the 

determination of whether the conflict of interest exists.  A director who has a conflict of interest in a 

matter before the Board shall leave the room during any discussion and vote on that matter.  This 

paragraph shall also apply to members of committees. 

 

 Bonds 

 

7.10 Any bonds issued by the Corporation shall be in accordance with the Act and shall not be issued until 

approved by the City Council and by the bond counsel and financial advisors of the City or the 

Corporation. 

 

 

 ARTICLE VIII 

 BOOKS, RECORDS AUDITS 

  

Maintenance of Records 

 

8.01 Pursuant to 7.02 above the City of Kenedy The Corporation shall keep and properly maintain, in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, complete books, records, accounts, and 

financial statements pertaining to its corporate funds, activities, and affairs.  In addition to proper 

financial records, the City of Kenedy Corporation shall keep correct and complete minutes of all 

board and committee meetings and all records as required by the State of Texas Statutes City of 

Kenedy, by contracting agents, or by funding sources. 

 



 Compliance with State Law 

 

8.02 All records shall be kept and administered in accordance with the Texas Open Records Act, as 

amended. 

 

 Inspection 

 

8.03 Any member of the City Council of Kenedy, director or officer of the Corporation may inspect and 

receive copies of all books and records of the Corporation required to be kept by the Bylaws. 

 

  

ARTICLE IX 

 AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 

 

9.01 The Board may alter, amend, or repeal the Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws, but the change shall be 

effective only upon approval by the City of Kenedy City Council. 

 

 Legal Construction 

 

9.02 If any Bylaw provision is held to be illegal, the illegality shall not effect any other provision and the 

Bylaws shall be construed as if the illegal provision had not been included in the Bylaws. 

 

  

ARTICLE X 

 INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

  

Corporation to Indemnify 

 

10.01 The Corporation shall indemnify any director or officer or former director or officer of the 

Corporation from expenses and costs (including attorney's fees) actually and necessarily incurred by 

the officer or director in connection with any claim asserted against the officer or director by action in 

court or otherwise by reason of the person being or having been a director or officer, except in 

relation to matters as to which the person shall have been guilty of negligence or misconduct in 

respect of the matter in which indemnity is sought. 

 

 Corporation May Provide-Insurance 

 

10.02 The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a 

director, officer, employee, or agent of the Corporation to insure such person against any liability 

asserted against the person by reason of the person being or having been a director, officer, employee, 

or agent of the Corporation.  The premiums for the insurance shall be paid for by the Corporation. 

 

  

ARTICLE XI 

 PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 

 

11.01 Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised, shall be the parliamentary authority for all matters of 

procedure not specifically covered by the Bylaws or any specific rules of procedure adopted by the 

Board. 

 

 ARTICLE XII 



 DISSOLUTION OF THE CORPORATION 

 

12.01 The Corporation is a non-profit corporation.  Upon dissolution, all of the Corporation's assets shall be 

conveyed to the City of Kenedy. 

Originally adopted by the Board of Directors on January 28, 1999, revised in 2007 and ratified by the Board 

of Directors this 31st day of August, 2015. 

 

 

 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Gary Richards, President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Cindy Saenz, Secretary 

 

 

Bylaws originally approved and adopted by the City of Kenedy City Council by Resolution on January 30, 

1999, revised in 2007 and 2015, and ratified by the City Council this 13th day of July, 2021. 

 

 

CITY OF KENEDY 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Joe Baker, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Ruby Beave, City Secretary   



 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 8 

 

Discussion and possible action to award grant(s) on applications received for the COVID-19 

Small Business Assistance Grant 2020/2021 for small businesses adversely affected by COVID 

19 pandemic. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: City Secretary Ruby Beaven 































































































 
June 28, 2021 Kenedy 4B Corp. Agenda  Page 1 of 1 

KENEDY 4B CORPORATION AGENDA 

Regular Meeting: Monday, June 28, 2021 
 

AGENDA ITEM: 9 

 

Discussion and possible action to approve a stand-alone EDC 4B website focused on attracting 

business and development to Kenedy. 

 

SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Linn 


	2021, 06-28 4B Agenda_Signed
	3.1 Cover Sheet
	3.2 Backup - 2021, 05-24 Minutes_Pending Approval
	4.1 Cover Sheet
	4.2 Backup - May 2021 Financial Report
	5.1 Cover Sheet
	5.2 Backup - P&R Glenna May Bench
	6.1 Cover Sheet
	6.2 Backup - Bills for Month
	REVISED OPEN INVOICES FOR PAYMENT
	P&R Upbeat Invoice

	7.1 Cover Sheet
	7.2 Backup - (IN PROGRESS)AMENDED Revised BYLAWS 071207 (1)
	8.1 Cover Sheet
	8.2 Backup - COVID-19 Small Bus Grant Apps
	2021, 04-28 Luxury Inn
	2021, 04-29 Hanky Panky Party House
	2021, 05-06 Gloria's Restaurant
	2021, 05-28 Frontier Pharmacy of Kenedy, Inc.
	2021, 05-28 The Firm

	9.1 Cover Sheet (no backup)

